
CGA Board of Directors Meeting, August 23, 2022 │Page 1 
 

Colusa Groundwater Authority Board of Directors 
1213 Market Street, Colusa, CA 95932 | 530-458-0891 | www.c olusagroundwater.org 

 
MEETING AGENDA 

 August 23, 2022 | 1:00 p.m. 
Colusa Industrial Properties, 100 Sunrise Blvd., Colusa, CA 95932 

Alternative meeting location(s): 
381 HCR 2424, Hillsboro, TX 76645 

 
Board members and members of the public may attend this meeting in person or through 

RingCentral meetings:   https://meetings.ringcentral.com/j/1472766525 
Or iPhone one-tap : 

           +1(623)4049000,,1472766525# (US West)  
           +1(650)2424929,,1472766525#  

Or Telephone:  +1(623)4049000 (US West)  
 +1(650)2424929 

        
    Meeting ID: 147 276 6525  

 
 

* Indicates action item 
 

1. Call To Order and Determination of Quorum 
a. Roll Call of Officers and Alternates 
b. Introductions of others in attendance 

 
2. Period Of Public Comment 

At this time, members of the public may address the CGA Board regarding items that are not on the agenda but 
are of relevance to the CGA. The Board may not act on items not on the agenda. 

 
3. Consent Calendar 

All consent calendar items may be acted upon by a single motion unless otherwise requested by a board member 
for separate consideration. 

a. * Approval of Minutes from July 26, 2022 CGA Board Meeting 
b. * Receive and File Financial Statements 
c. * Review and Consider Approval of Claims 

 
4. Approval of Approach for Water Year 2022 Annual Report 

a. *Authorize staff to work with GGA to develop and issue RFP for preparation of WY 2022 Annual 
Report  

b. *Appoint ad hoc Annual Report Committee to review proposals and manage project 
 

5. Approval of Approach for SGMA Round 2 Grant Writing Services 
a. *Authorize staff to work with GGA to develop and issue RFP/RFQ for grant writing services for 

SGMA Round 2 Grant application 
b. *Authorize TAC to review proposals and application process 

 

Colusa Groundwater BOD Agenda 
8-23-2022  
Page 1

http://www.colusagroundwater.org/
https://meetings.ringcentral.com/j/1472766525


CGA Board of Directors Meeting, August 23, 2022 │Page 2 
 

 
 

6. Colusa Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP) 
a. GSP Development grants (Prop 1 and Prop 68) and Project Agreements 
b. GSP Implementation 
c. Northern Sacramento Valley Integrated Regional Water Management Plan Project Solicitation 

 
7. Committee Reports 

a. TAC – Bill Vanderwaal, Thad Bettner, Jim Wallace, Denise Carter, Darrin Williams, Deke Dormer, 
Ben King, Brandon Davison DWR (ex-officio) 

b. Water Rights for Unappropriated Flood Water ad hoc – Bill Vanderwaal, Jim Wallace, Darrin 
Williams, Thad Bettner, Ben King, Halbert Charter, Glenn County representatives (to be invited), 
Sites Authority (to be invited) 

c. Long Term Funding ad hoc – Thad Bettner, Darrin Williams, Jeff Moresco, Sajit Singh 
 

8. Update on Executive Order No. N-7-22 
 

9.  DWR Staff Update 
 

10. Administrative Update 
 

11. Closed Session 
Gov’t Code 54956.9 – Conference with Legal Counsel – existing litigation 
Aqualliance et al. v. Colusa Groundwater Authority, Glenn Groundwater Authority 
Colusa County Superior Court – Case Number CV24584 

Aqualliance et al. v. Biggs-West Gridley Water District, et al. 
Butte County Superior Court – Case Number 22CV00348 

 

12. Report out of Closed Session 
 

13. Member Reports and Comments 
 

14. Next Meeting: September 27, 2022 
 

15. Adjourn 
 

 
A complete agenda packet, including back-up information, is available for inspection during normal business hours 
at 1213 Market Street, Colusa, CA 95932. The full agenda packet can also be found on the CGA website: 
https://colusagroundwater.org. 

 
In compliance with the Americans with Disability Act, if you require special accommodation to participate in 
CGA Board or Subcommittee meetings, please contact the Colusa Groundwater Authority Program Manager 
at 650-587-7300, extension 17, prior to any meeting and arrangements will be made to accommodate you. 

Colusa Groundwater BOD Agenda 
8-23-2022  
Page 2

https://colusagroundwater.org/


Colusa Groundwater Authority Board of Directors 
1213 Market Street, Colusa, CA 95932 | 530-458-0891 | www.c olusagroundwater.org 

 
MEETING AGENDA 

 August 23, 2022 | 1:00 p.m. 
 

Colusa Industrial Properties, 100 Sunrise Blvd., Colusa, CA 95932 
Board members and the public may attend the meeting through the RingCentral link below: 
 
Join from PC, Mac, Linux, iOS or Android: https://meetings.ringcentral.com/j/1472766525 

Or iPhone one-tap :  
    US: +1(773)2319226,,1472766525# (US North) 
           +1(623)4049000,,1472766525# (US West)  

           +1(650)2424929,,1472766525#  
Or Telephone:  

    US: +1(773)2319226 (US North) 
           +1(623)4049000 (US West)  

           +1(650)2424929  
        

    Meeting ID: 147 276 6525 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM 1: CALL TO ORDER AND DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM 

AGENDA ITEM 1.a: Roll Call of Officers and Alternates 
 
SIX (6) Members must be present to constitute a quorum.  
 
As of July 1, 2021, and through June 30, 2023, Maxwell Irrigation District sits as the representative for Maxwell 
I.D. and Westside W.D.; and Princeton-Codora-Glenn Irrigation District sits as the representative for Princeton-
Codora-Glenn I.D. and Provident I.D. 
Note: Beginning July 1, 2023, Westside Water District and Provident Irrigation District will represent their 
respective Memberships on the CGA Board. 
 
4.1 Board of Directors. The business of the Authority will be conducted by a Board of Directors that is hereby 
established, and that shall be initially composed of and appointed as follows: One member of the Board of the 
Maxwell Irrigation District or the Westside Water District, said appointment to alternate every two years 
beginning with an appointment by the Maxwell Irrigation District of one of its Board members; One member of 
the Board of the Princeton-Codora-Glenn Irrigation District or the Provident Irrigation District, said appointment 
to alternate every two years beginning with an appointment by the Princeton-Codora-Glenn Irrigation District of 
one of its Board members... 

Colusa Groundwater BOD Agenda 
8-23-2022  
Page 3

http://www.colusagroundwater.org/
https://meetings.ringcentral.com/j/1472766525


 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 1.b: Introductions of Others in Attendance 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Colusa Groundwater BOD Agenda 
8-23-2022  
Page 4



AGENDA ITEM 2: PERIOD OF PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Members of the public may comment on items not on today’s agenda that are relevant to the CGA. Public 
comments are limited to no more than 5 minutes. No action can be taken on items that are not on the agenda. 
 
 

 
 

  AGENDA ITEM 3:  CONSENT CALENDAR 

 

BACKGROUND:  

All Consent Calendar items may be acted upon by a single motion unless otherwise requested by a board 
member for separate consideration.   

 

ACTION ITEMS: 

AGENDA ITEM 3a.  Approval of Minutes from the July 26, 2022 CGA Board Meeting 

ATTACHMENTS:  Draft minutes from July 26, 2022 CGA board meeting 

 

AGENDA ITEM 3b.  Receive and File Financial Statements 

ATTACHMENTS:  Financial statements for period ending July 31, 2022 

 

AGENDA ITEM 3c.  Review and Consider Approval of Claims 

ATTACHMENTS:  Report of Claims to be Paid and supporting documents 

 

 

 

 

Colusa Groundwater BOD Agenda 
8-23-2022  
Page 5



 

CGA Board of Directors Meeting, July 26, 2022 │Page 1 
 

Colusa Groundwater Authority Board of Directors 
1213 Market Street, Colusa, CA 95932 | 530-458-0891 | www.c olusagroundwater.org 

 
MEETING MINUTES 

 July 26, 2022  
 

 
1. Call To Order and Determination of Quorum  
 Chair Carter called the meeting to order at 1:26 p.m. and determined that a quorum was present. 

a. Roll Call of Officers and Alternates 
Present: Jesse Cain, Darrin William, Denise Carter, Jim Wallace, Knute Myers, Alfred Sellers, Bill 
Vanderwaal. 

b. Introductions of others in attendance:  Ben King, Jenny Scheer, Brandon Davison, Lisa Hunter, Holly 
Dawley, Dan Ruiz, Gary Petersen Sophia Selivanoff, Greg Plucker, Hilary Reinhard; CGA staff Carol 
Thomas-Keefer and Lori Frontella; Attorney Brett Stroud 
 

2. Period Of Public Comment 
At this time, members of the public may address the CGA Board regarding items that are not on the agenda but 
are of relevance to the CGA. The Board may not act on items not on .the agenda. 
Chair Carter invited public comment on items not on the agenda.  Ben King provided comments on the Los 
Vaqueros Reservoir Expansion Project presentation made recently for the California Water Commission.  He 
noted that the presentation was provided to staff and would be made available following the meeting.  No 
further public comments were given. 

 
3. Consent Calendar 

All consent calendar items may be acted upon by a single motion unless otherwise requested by a board member 
for separate consideration. 

a. * Approval of Minutes from the May 24, 2022 CGA Board Meeting 
b. *Adoption of Agenda and Resolution No. 2022-05 Finding of Need to Allow Virtual Meeting      

Attendance and Authorizing Remote Teleconference Meetings (AB 361) 
c. * Receive and File Financial Statements 
d. * Review and consider approval of Claims 
e. *Appointment of Carol Thomas-Keefer as board Secretary and Lori Frontella as Assistant 

Secretary 
f. *Dissolve ad hoc 2022/23 Budget Committee 
g. *Dissolve ad hoc Program Manager Recruitment Committee 

 
On motion by Mr. Williams, seconded by Mr. Vanderwaal, and unanimously carried, the Consent 
Calendar was approved as presented.  
 
AYES:  7 Williams, Vanderwaal, Cain, Carter, Wallace, Myers, Sellers 
NOES:  0 
ABSENT: 0 
 

 

Agenda Item 3.a 
Page 1

Colusa Groundwater BOD Agenda 
8-23-2022  
Page 6

http://www.colusagroundwater.org/


 

CGA Board of Directors Meeting, July 26, 2022 │Page 2 
 

4. Operations Fee  
a. *Consider approval of Resolution No. 2022-06 Requesting Collection of Charges on Colusa 

County Tax Roll in Fiscal Year 2022/2023 and Authorize the Chair to sign  
 

Ms. Carol Thomas-Keefer reported that the Operations Fee approved by the Board at the May 
meeting required the approval of a resolution to submit to Colusa County, along with an exhibit 
indicating parcels for collection of the approved parcel charge.   

  
On motion by Mr. Williams, seconded by Mr. Myers and unanimously carried, Resolution 2022-006 
requesting Collection of Charges on Colusa County Tax Roll for Fiscal Year 2022/2023 was approved 
and the Chair was authorized to sign.  

 
AYES:  7 Williams, Vanderwaal, Cain, Carter, Wallace, Myers, Sellers 
NOES:  0 
ABSENT: 0 

 
b. *Consider approval of Resolution No. 2022-07 Requesting Collection of Charges on Yolo 

County Tax Roll in Fiscal Year 2022/2023 and Authorize the Chair to sign 
 

Ms. Thomas-Keefer reported that, similar to the previous item, the Operations Fee approved by the 
Board at the May meeting required the approval of a resolution to submit to Yolo County, along with 
an exhibit indicating parcels for collection of the approved parcel charge.   
 
Mr. King commented that the Glenn Groundwater Authority was looking into removing the hill 
parcels from its assessment boundaries and suggested CGA do the same for fairness. 

 
On motion by Mr. Vanderwaal, seconded by Mr. Wallace, and unanimously carried, Resolution 2022-
007 requesting Collection of Charges on Yolo County Tax Roll for Fiscal Year 2022/2023 was 
approved and the Chair was authorized to sign.  

 
AYES:  7 Williams, Vanderwaal, Cain, Carter, Wallace, Myers, Sellers 
NOES:  0 
ABSENT: 0 

 
 

5. Request for Qualifications for Groundwater Sustainability Agency Data Review, Fee Analysis and Rate 
Setting Services 

a. *Approve issuing Request for Qualifications for GSA Data Review, Fee Analysis and Rate Setting 
Services, pending Counsel review 

b. *Authorize ad hoc Long Term Funding Committee to bring a consultant recommendation to the 
CGA board and to coordinate with the Glenn Groundwater Authority as appropriate 

 
Ms. Thomas-Keefer reported that the previous fee study, conducted in 2019, resulted in a rate 
structure allowing fees to be collected through Fiscal Year 2023/24.  In order to have a new rate 
structure approved and in place by 2024/25 and to provide for continued support of the Colusa 
Groundwater Sustainability Plan implementation, staff recommends that the CGA board consider 
issuing a Request for Qualifications for GSA data review, fee analysis and rate setting services.  She 
also stated that Glenn Groundwater Authority had recently approved a similar RFP, and there could 
be cost savings if CGA and GGA collaborate with a single consultant.  Additionally, Ms. Thomas-Keefer 
recommended that the Board authorize the ad hoc Long Term Funding Committee to manage the RFP 
review process, coordinate with GGA if appropriate, and bring a recommendation back to the Board. 

Agenda Item 3.a 
Page 2

Colusa Groundwater BOD Agenda 
8-23-2022  
Page 7



 

CGA Board of Directors Meeting, July 26, 2022 │Page 3 
 

 
 
Mr. Williams noted that this effort should also include some longer-term budget planning for CGA.  
Following additional discussion, on motion made by Mr. Wallace, seconded by Mr. Williams an 
unanimously carried, it was approved to  a) Issue a Request for Qualifications for the GSA Data Review, 
Fee Analysis and Rate Setting Service and b) Authorize the ad hoc Long Term Funding Committee to 
manage the review of proposal, bring a consultant recommendation to the CGA Board and to 
coordinate with the Glenn Groundwater Authority as appropriate.  

 
AYES:  7 Williams, Vanderwaal, Cain, Carter, Wallace, Myers, Sellers 
NOES:  0 
ABSENT: 0 

 
 

6. Request for Proposals for Annual Audit Services for Fiscal Year 2021/22 
a. *Approve issuing Request for Proposals for Annual Audit Services for FY 2021/22 

 
Ms. Thomas-Keefer stated that with the end of the fiscal year on June 30, CGA should now engage audit 
services for the 2021/22 audit.  She reported that the firm of Robert W. Johnson CPA had performed 
the audit for the past three years, and the board should provide direction as to whether to issue the 
draft Request for Proposals for Audit Services for FY 2021/22 or to request a new proposal/contract 
extension from the existing audit firm.   
 
Following discussion, on motion made by Mr. Williams, seconded by Mr. Vanderwaal, and 
unanimously carried, staff was instructed to request a contract extension/new proposal from the firm 
of Robert W. Johnson CPA.   

 
AYES:  7 Members: Williams, Vanderwaal, Cain, Carter, Wallace, Myers, Sellers 
NOES:  0 
ABSENT: 0 

 
 

7. Colusa Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP) 
a. GSP Development grants (Prop 1 and Prop 68) and Project Agreements 
b. GSP Implementation 
c. Discussion on upcoming Sustainable Groundwater Management grants 
d. Discussion on Water Year 2022 Annual Report 

 
Ms. Thomas-Keefer provided an update on the GSP activities as noted.  She reported that reports had been 
completed and submitted for the Well Monitoring Pilot Program and the Subsidence Benchmark Study; she 
stated that completion of the Hydrologic Investigation had been delayed due to the primary consultant’s illness 
but was expected to be completed soon.   

 
8. Committee Reports 

a. TAC – Bill Vanderwaal, Thad Bettner, Jim Wallace, Denise Carter, Darrin Williams, CC Groundwater 
Commission, Deke Dormer, Ben King, Brandon Davison DWR (ex-officio) 

b. Water Rights for Unappropriated Flood Water Ad Hoc – Bill Vanderwaal, Jim Wallace, Darrin 
Williams, Thad Bettner, Ben King, Halbert Charter, Glenn County representatives (to be invited), 
Sites Authority (to be invited) 

 

Agenda Item 3.a 
Page 3

Colusa Groundwater BOD Agenda 
8-23-2022  
Page 8



 

CGA Board of Directors Meeting, July 26, 2022 │Page 4 
 

 
Mr. Williams provided an overview of the Joint TAC meeting discussion on July 8, noting that the key topic 
was the schedule and process for prioritizing and selecting projects for the upcoming DWR SGMA Round 2 
Grant solicitation coming up this fall.   
 
Mr. Vanderwaal reported on behalf of the Water Rights committee that a report had been received from a 
water rights consultant in Sacramento, and another meeting was scheduled for later this week. 

 
9. Update on Executive Order No. N-7-22 

Chair Carter updated the Board regarding the County’s status and process.  Mr. King mentioned that the 
Legislature is considering AB 2201, a bill that would codify the portion of the Governor’s Executive 
Order that requires Groundwater Sustainability Agencies to review certain new well permits for 
consistency with applicable Groundwater Sustainability Plans. 
 

10.  DWR Staff Update 
Mr. Brandon Davison reported that water level monitoring is currently underway.  He also stated that 
Kelley List of DWR would have a presentation on grant applications available in mid-August. 

 
11. Administrative Update 

a. Conflict of Interest Code review and confirmation 
 Chair Carter reported that she and staff had reviewed the CGA Conflict of Interest code and she has signed and 

submitted confirmation to the County as required. 
 

b. Appointment of ad hoc By-laws Committee –  
 Chair Carter stated that by-laws need to be completed for CGA and asked for volunteers for an ad hoc By-laws 

Committee.  The appointed committee members are Denise Carter, Knute Myers, Hilary Reinhard.  Staff will 
work on completing a review draft with the intent of calling for committee review in September. 

 
12. Closed Session 

Gov’t Code 54956.9 – Conference with Legal Counsel – existing litigation 
Aqualliance et al. v. Colusa Groundwater Authority, Glenn Groundwater Authority 
Colusa County Superior Court – Case Number CV24584 

Aqualliance et al. v. Biggs-West Gridley Water District, et al. 
Butte County Superior Court – Case Number 22CV00348 

13. Report out of Closed Session 

The Attorney, Mr. Stroud, reported that no reportable action was taken in Closed Session. 
 

14. Member Reports and Comments 
Chair Carter reported that the County’s Drought Task Force would meet tomorrow.  Mr. Williams reported 
that he has seen water levels in wells stabilize and are now coming up. 

 
15. Next Meeting: August 23, 2022 

 
16. Adjourn 

 There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 3:15 p.m. 

Agenda Item 3.a 
Page 4

Colusa Groundwater BOD Agenda 
8-23-2022  
Page 9



Agenda Item 3.b 
Page 1

Colusa Groundwater BOD Agenda 
8-23-2022  
Page 10



Agenda Item 3.b 
Page 2

Colusa Groundwater BOD Agenda 
8-23-2022  
Page 11



Agenda Item 3.b 
Page 3

Colusa Groundwater BOD Agenda 
8-23-2022  
Page 12



Agenda Item 3.b 
Page 4

Colusa Groundwater BOD Agenda 
8-23-2022  
Page 13



Agenda Item 3.b 
Page 5

Colusa Groundwater BOD Agenda 
8-23-2022  
Page 14



Agenda Item 3.b 
Page 6

Colusa Groundwater BOD Agenda 
8-23-2022  
Page 15



Agenda Item 3.b 
Page 7

Colusa Groundwater BOD Agenda 
8-23-2022  
Page 16



Agenda Item 3.b 
Page 8

Colusa Groundwater BOD Agenda 
8-23-2022  
Page 17



Agenda Item 3.b 
Page 9

Colusa Groundwater BOD Agenda 
8-23-2022  
Page 18



Agenda Item: 3.c 
Page 1

Colusa Groundwater BOD Agenda 
8-23-2022  
Page 19



Agenda Item: 3.c 
Page 2

Colusa Groundwater BOD Agenda 
8-23-2022  
Page 20



Agenda Item: 3.c 
Page 3

Colusa Groundwater BOD Agenda 
8-23-2022  
Page 21



Agenda Item: 3.c 
Page 4

Colusa Groundwater BOD Agenda 
8-23-2022  
Page 22



Agenda Item: 3.c 
Page 5

Colusa Groundwater BOD Agenda 
8-23-2022  
Page 23



Agenda Item: 3.c 
Page 6

Colusa Groundwater BOD Agenda 
8-23-2022  
Page 24



Agenda Item: 3.c 
Page 7

Colusa Groundwater BOD Agenda 
8-23-2022  
Page 25



Agenda Item: 3.c 
Page 8

Colusa Groundwater BOD Agenda 
8-23-2022  
Page 26



Colusa Groundwater Authority Board of Directors Meeting 
August 23, 2022 │1:00 p.m. 

AGENDA SUPPORT MATERIALS 
 

 
 

  AGENDA ITEM 4:  Approval of Approach for Water Year 2022 Annual Report 

 

AGENDA ITEM 4a: Authorize staff to work with GGA to develop and issue RFP for preparation 
of WY 2022 Annual Report 

AGENDA ITEM 4b:  Appoint ad hoc Annual Report Committee to review proposals and manage 
report 

ACTION ITEM 

BACKGROUND: 

At the July 26, 2022, meeting, the CGA Board heard a general report regarding the Annual 
Report on the Colusa Subbasin for Water Year 2022.  This report will be developed in 
conjunction with Glenn Groundwater Authority and must be submitted to DWR by April 1, 
2023.  The current Water Year ends September 30, after which report preparation can begin.   

The CGA board briefly discussed the benefits of issuing a Request for Proposals (RFP) versus 
contracting directly with Davids Engineering; however, the item was for information only so no 
action or direction was given.  The GGA board considered this matter on August 8, 2022, and 
expressed its preference to issue an RFP, pending CGA concurrence.  GGA has also suggested 
that the proposal solicitation could include an option to extend the agreement for two 
additional years’ reports.   

Staff recommends that the CGA Board consider authorizing staff to work with GGA to develop 
and issue a RFP for preparation of the WY 2022 Annual Report.  This process should be started 
soon, in order to retain a consultant in time to meet the April 1 report submittal deadline; 
however, the CGA Board may be required to approve the RFP before it is issued, either at the 
September meeting or a special meeting.   Additionally, the Board should consider appointing 
an ad hoc committee to oversee the consultant selection and manage the report preparation. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

4a.  Authorize staff to work with GGA to develop and issue RFP for preparation of WY 2022 
Annual Report; and 

4b. Appoint an ad hoc Annual Report Committee to review proposals and manage the project. 

Agenda Item: 4 a-b 
Page 1

Colusa Groundwater BOD Agenda 
8-23-2022  
Page 27



Colusa Groundwater Authority Board of Directors Meeting 
August 23, 2022 │1:00 p.m. 

AGENDA SUPPORT MATERIALS 
 

 
 

  AGENDA ITEM 5:  Approval of Approach for SGMA Round 2 Grant Writing Services 

 

AGENDA ITEM 5a: Authorize staff to work with GGA to develop and issue RFP/RFQ for grant 
writing services for SGMA Round 2 Grant application 

AGENDA ITEM 5b:  Authorize TAC to review proposals and application process 

ACTION ITEM 

BACKGROUND: 

At its July 26, 2022, meeting, the CGA Board received background on DWR’s upcoming SGMA 
Round 2 grant proposal solicitation, which is scheduled to open around October 2022.  The CGA 
TAC has been working in collaboration with the GGA TAC on project prioritization in order to 
identify those projects and management activities best suited for inclusion in the upcoming 
round of grant funding.   

In support of the Joint TAC’s efforts to develop a project list, the CGA Board, in collaboration 
with GGA, should also consider retaining the services of a consultant to provide grant writing 
services for the application submittal.  Staff and TAC members have discussed the ability of 
Davids Engineering to provide such services, and Davids Engineering has indicated that its staff 
can do so if desired; Davids Engineering would likely partner with West Yost for such services.  
Other consultant teams are also available to perform grant writing services, if the CGA board 
determines that a more competitive process is needed; however, the short time frame to 
produce a comprehensive grant application once the Colusa Subbasin project list has been 
identified suggests that it is not practical to issue an RFP/RFQ to a broad selection of 
consultants.  GGA has suggested, and CGA staff concurs, that an RFP/RFQ be developed and 
sent to a short list of qualified consultants.  The CGA board may need to approve the final 
RFP/RFQ before it is issued, either at the regular September meeting or at a special meeting, in 
order to retain consultant services to meet the application deadline in early 2023. 

Currently, CGA’s budget includes $20,000 for Grant Applications, with additional funds 
potentially available in the GSP Technical Assistance budget.  The cost of these consultant 
services would be shared with GGA.   In considering moving ahead with soliciting proposals for 
grant writing services, the CGA Board should also consider assigning the CGA TAC the tasks of 

Agenda Item: 5 a-b 
Page 1

Colusa Groundwater BOD Agenda 
8-23-2022  
Page 28



reviewing consultant proposals, providing a recommendation to the Board, and generally 
overseeing the application process. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

5a.  Authorize staff to work with GGA to develop and issue RFP/RFQ for grant writing services 
for SGMA Round 2 grant application (subject to attorney review and possible Board approval of 
final RFP/RFQ); and 

5b. Authorize the CGA TAC to review proposals and application process 

Agenda Item: 5 a-b 
Page 2

Colusa Groundwater BOD Agenda 
8-23-2022  
Page 29



Colusa Groundwater Authority Board of Directors Meeting 
August 23, 2022 │1:00 p.m. 

AGENDA SUPPORT MATERIALS 
 

 

  AGENDA ITEM 6:  Colusa Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP) 

 

6a. GSP Development Grants (Proposition 1 and Proposition 68) and Project Agreements 

CGA manages the Proposition 1 and Proposition 68 GSP Development Grants.  The invoice and 
progress report covering April through June 2022 are being prepared and will be submitted 
soon. 

Proposition 1 Grant Funds: $1,000,000.00 
Expended: $948,051.40 (through March 2022- Invoice 14) – no update 
Remaining: $51,948.60 
 
Proposition 68 Grant Funds: $999,600.00 
Expended: $735,635.35 (through March 2022- Invoice 14) – no update 
Remaining: $263,964.65 
 
The Glenn GA holds the agreements with Davids Engineering for one active project related to 
the Proposition 1 and Proposition 68 grants. Work from these projects is invoiced to CGA to 
include in the grant reimbursement requests (grant invoices). CGA reimburses the GGA after 
payment from DWR is received. 
 
Colusa Subbasin GSP Development Project 
Contract Amount: $1,542,600 
Expended: $1,461,189.10 (through June 2022) 
Remaining: $81,410.90 
 
CGA has an on-call support services agreement with Davids Engineering. Task Order 1 includes a 
variety of tasks to provide on-call technical support.  Work to assist with upcoming SGMA 
grants began in July and is billed against the on-call support Task Order. 
 
SGMA On-Call Support Services 
Contract Amount: $10,000 
Expended: $2,282.75 
Remaining: $7,717.25 
 

Agenda Item: 6 a-b-c 
Page 

1

Colusa Groundwater BOD Agenda 
8-23-2022  
Page 30



6b.  GSP Implementation 
 
Work is currently focused on completing any remaining grant tasks.  The hydrogeologic 
investigation work plan is nearing completion and will likely be available this month.  Staff 
continues to work with GGA and our consultants on completion of these tasks. 
 
 
6c.  Northern Sacramento Valley Integrated Regional Water Management Plan (NSV IRWMP) 
Project Solicitation 
 
The NSV IRWM group is soliciting for projects to be included in the NSV IRWMP.  The IRWM 
group is a 6-county area including Butte, Colusa, Glenn, Shasta, Sutter, and Tehama counties.  
Grant applications for IRWM projects are due in February 2023, and some of the Colusa 
Subbasin GSP projects may be good prospects for this funding opportunity.  In order to be 
considered for this application, projects must be included in the region’s IRWMP.  For the NSV 
IRWMP, applications are submitted on an on-going basis.  The group’s Technical Advisory 
Committee reviews applications and makes recommendations to the NSV IRWM Board as to 
whether projects should be included in the Plan, and the IRWM Board then approves projects 
to be added to the Plan.  The deadline to submit projects to the IRWM group for consideration 
for this round of funding is September 2, 2022.  The project submittal form is located on the 
NSV IRWM website at:  https://nsvwaterplan.org/mdocs-posts/nsv-irwm-project-submittal-
form/ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item: 6 a-b-c 
Page 

2

Colusa Groundwater BOD Agenda 
8-23-2022  
Page 31

https://nsvwaterplan.org/mdocs-posts/nsv-irwm-project-submittal-form/
https://nsvwaterplan.org/mdocs-posts/nsv-irwm-project-submittal-form/


Colusa Groundwater Authority Board of Directors Meeting 
August 23, 2022 │1:00 p.m. 

AGENDA SUPPORT MATERIALS 
 
 
 

 

  AGENDA ITEM 7:  COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 
8a.  Technical Advisory Committee – Bill Vanderwaal, Thad Bettner, Jim Wallace, Denise Carter, Darrin 
Williams, Deke Dormer, Ben King, Brandon Davison DWR (ex-officio) 

8b.  Water Rights for Unappropriated Flood Water ad hoc -- – Bill Vanderwaal, Jim Wallace, Darrin 
Williams, Thad Bettner, Ben King, Halbert Charter, Glenn County representatives (to be invited), Sites 
Authority (to be invited) 
 
8c.  Long Term Funding ad hoc –Thad Bettner, Darrin Williams, Jeff Moresco, Sajit Singh 
 

Agenda Item: 7 a-b-c 
Page 1

Colusa Groundwater BOD Agenda 
8-23-2022  
Page 32



Colusa Groundwater Authority Board of Directors Meeting 
August 23, 2022 │1:00 p.m. 

AGENDA SUPPORT MATERIALS 
 

 

  AGENDA ITEM 8:  UPDATE ON GOVERNOR‘S EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. N-7-22 

  

As part of the Executive Order, the CGA is continuing to provide Colusa County Environmental 
Health with notice of availability of updated subsidence data (InSAR).  This data is collected 
quarterly. 

Additionally, earlier this month, the Governor released California’s Water Supply Strategy, 
building on the state’s water needs outlined in the Executive Order and plans for improvement.  
That document can be reviewed here:  CA-Water-Supply-Strategy.pdf 

 

   
AGENDA ITEM 9:  DWR STAFF UPDATE 

DWR representative Brandon Davison may provide an update on DWR activities and SGMA 
news. 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM 10: ADMINISTRATIVE UPDATE 

The Program Manager and/or the Chair may provide updates on pending administrative or 
managerial matters. 

 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 11: CLOSED SESSION 

Closed Session 
Gov’t Code 54956.9 – Conference with Legal Counsel – existing litigation 
Aqualliance et al. v. Colusa Groundwater Authority, Glenn Groundwater Authority 
Colusa County Superior Court – Case Number CV24584 

Aqualliance et al. v. Biggs-West Gridley Water District, et al. 
Butte County Superior Court – Case Number 22CV00348 

Agenda Items: 8-15 
Page 1

Colusa Groundwater BOD Agenda 
8-23-2022  
Page 33

https://resources.ca.gov/-/media/CNRA-Website/Files/Initiatives/Water-Resilience/CA-Water-Supply-Strategy.pdf


 

AGENDA ITEM 12: REPORT OUT OF CLOSED SESSION 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM 13: MEMBER REPORTS AND COMMENTS 
 

INFORMATION ONLY 
CGA Board Members and Alternates are encouraged to share information that may be relevant 
to the CGA. No action will be taken on any of these items. 

 

AGENDA ITEM 14: NEXT MEETING  
 
The next meeting of the CGA Board will be held September 27, 2022, 1:00 pm at CIP 
Conference Room with an option for remote participation 
 
AGENDA ITEM 15: ADJOURN 

 

 

Agenda Items: 8-15 
Page 2

Colusa Groundwater BOD Agenda 
8-23-2022  
Page 34


	08-23-22 CGA BOD agenda 
	1. Call To Order and Determination of Quorum
	2. Period Of Public Comment
	3. Consent Calendar
	All consent calendar items may be acted upon by a single motion unless otherwise requested by a board member for separate consideration.
	7. Committee Reports
	10. Administrative Update
	12. Report out of Closed Session
	15. Adjourn

	Items 1-3 with attachments
	CGA Agenda packet items 1-3
	Item 3.a 07-26-22 CGA BOD MINUTES
	1. Call To Order and Determination of Quorum
	Chair Carter called the meeting to order at 1:26 p.m. and determined that a quorum was present.
	2. Period Of Public Comment
	3. Consent Calendar
	All consent calendar items may be acted upon by a single motion unless otherwise requested by a board member for separate consideration.
	On motion by Mr. Williams, seconded by Mr. Vanderwaal, and unanimously carried, the Consent Calendar was approved as presented.
	8. Committee Reports
	11. Administrative Update
	a. Conflict of Interest Code review and confirmation
	Chair Carter reported that she and staff had reviewed the CGA Conflict of Interest code and she has signed and submitted confirmation to the County as required.
	b. Appointment of ad hoc By-laws Committee –
	Chair Carter stated that by-laws need to be completed for CGA and asked for volunteers for an ad hoc By-laws Committee.  The appointed committee members are Denise Carter, Knute Myers, Hilary Reinhard.  Staff will work on completing a review draft wi...
	13. Report out of Closed Session
	The Attorney, Mr. Stroud, reported that no reportable action was taken in Closed Session.
	16. Adjourn
	There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 3:15 p.m.

	Item 3.b Financial Statements
	July 2022 Financials and Claims

	Item 3.c Claims
	CRIPPEN INV 8627
	DAVID ENG INV 1173.02-5258


	Item 4 a- b CGA BOD 8-23-22 Staff Rpt Item 4 Ann Rpt
	Item 5 a-b CGA BOD 8-23-22 Staff Rpt Item 5 Grant Writing
	Item 6 a-b-c- CGA BOD 8-23-22 Staff rept Item 6 GSP
	Item 7 a-b-c  CGA 8-23-22 BOD Staff rpt Item 7 comm rpts
	Item 8-15  CGA BOD 8-23-22 Staff rept items 8-15
	The Program Manager and/or the Chair may provide updates on pending administrative or managerial matters.




